
Hillsdale Planning Board  
Minutes  

        August 8, 2011  
 

Present: Hank Henward, Chairman; Deborah Bowen; Mark Barbato; Ellen Levy; 
Richard Freiman; Bud Gardner; Vivian deGeorges, Secretary 
 
Excused: Patti Rohrlich 
 
Also present:  CAC members Gretchen Stevens & Ruth Dufault    

The meeting was called to order at 7:33 by Mr. Henward. 
 
Peter Greer subdivision application TAX ID 136.‐2‐39.112 Subdivision of 43 
acre parcel into two lots; Mitchell Street 
 
Mr. Greer distributed a map of his property to the Board.  He described 
possibly using the previously‐approved driveway as the shared driveway. Any 
houses on each approximately 20 acre parcel will be private and not seen from 
the road; the building envelopes will be set in about 200’ from the road.    
Mr. Henward said the only issue might be the new driveway specs with 
pullouts.  Mr. Greer said it was flat and any pullouts should not be a problem.  
Ms. Levy asked if we need to describe a building envelope.  Mr. Henward said 
we did and asked Mr. Greer to put them on the map as well as the driveway 
pullouts.  The highest elevation is about 800’.  Ms. Stevens asked for a copy of 
the map for the CAC.  
 
Mr. Henward asked Mr. Greer if he would put no further subdivision 
restrictions on the parcel and Mr. Greer said he has investors for whom it may 
be an issue, and that he would find out and get back to the Board. 
 
Nancy & Christopher Unrath ‐ Site Plan Review Tax ID 126.‐02‐20.111 
Parcel is at 590 Mitchell St.  Proposed 1 bedroom 1 story home. Represented 
by Angelo Valentino, Builder;  Patrick Prendergast , Project Engineer 
 

Administrator

Administrator
08/15/2011



Mr. Prendergast distributed site plan maps and described the areas of 
disturbance, slope percentages and driveway turnouts.  Mr. Valentino said that 
the site was first approved in 2001 and then revisited and reapproved in 2002.   
Mr. Prendergast said that this site was approved 10 years ago and now there 
are new driveway requirements and he suggested that the requirements are 
only for new drives and not this one as this is an old one.  Mr. Henward said 
that all driveways have to be according to code.  There was discussion about 
the condition of the driveway. Ms. Bowen said she drove up the drive and that 
it is not really a driveway but more like a track.  Mr. Valentino said if it has to 
be redesigned it would cost about $50,000 and would need more tree cutting.  
Mr. Henward said we are here to follow a process which will take into account 
the legal requirements.  When it comes to emergency access, the fire chief, 
Richard Briggs, has the authority to sign off on the project. The code 
enforcement officer, Glen Smith, said that if the fire chief signs off, he’s 
prepared to sign off as well.   
 
Mr. Freiman said that if the code enforcer and fire chief says it’s okay, and the 
Planning Board says it’s okay, we are passing the responsibility to the owner.  
Ms. Levy asked if the owners understand and accept the responsibility of 
maintaining the drive during the winter to make sure there is emergency 
vehicle access.  Mr. Valentino said yes.   

Mr. Clark’s letter contains a provision that erosion and soil control plans must 
be in place.  Mr. Henward said that in the future, there may be an assessment 
on the owners for any damage to Town roads done by runoff from private 
drives.  

Ms. Stevens asked if we are approving the building envelope as well, and           
Mr. Henward said we were.  Ms. Stevens then expressed her concern that 
building the house where it is planned is breaking up the forested area.  Siting 
it closer to Mitchell Street and the other developed lots would be a better 
decision to preserve the contiguous forested area which is important for 
wildlife, whether cleared or not.    Mr. Henward agreed with her concerns and 
also said that we would love to enforce reforestation, but it’s not possible 
under the current laws. 



Mr. Henward asked if there was a motion to approve, subject to a letter from 
Dick Alford memorializing all the requirements in Mr. Clark’s letter, the letter 
from Mr. Briggs, and approval from Mr. Smith.  Mr. Alford’s letter would also 
be sent to the Unraths and all the neighbors involved in the shared drive.  

Also noted is the recommendation brought up by Mr. Valentino asking for a 
letter to the Unraths and all involved homeowners to take notice of the 
conditions of the shared driveway, that it is not up to standard, that repairs 
should be made, and that the onus is on them since in the homeowners’  
agreement for the drive, it is stipulated that all expenses for upkeep will be 
shared by all the owners.  The secretary will assemble the names of the owners 
of the shared driveway for Mr. Henward. 

Mr. Freiman made the motion, subject to approval letters from Mr. Alford and 
Mr. Smith, and taking into account the letters from Mr. Briggs and Mr. Clark in 
which various concerns are raised.  In spite of the concerns of Mr. Clark and   
Mr. Briggs, Mr. Smith has verbally given his approval for the reconstruction of 
this driveway.  Mr. Gardner seconded the motion.  The vote was: Mr. Freiman, 
Mr. Gardner, Mr. Barbato and Mr. Henward aye; Ms. Levy nay; Ms. Bowen 
abstaining. 

All letters will be forwarded to our attorney and he will advise us as to our 
action on this matter. 

 

Re‐stamping of subdivision map from 2007 for MAC Realty/Mastroianni on 
West End Road.  Tax ID 124.00.‐1‐28  Dan Russell, Surveyor 

 
This subdivision was approved in 2007 but never recorded and now the owner 
wants to convey part of it to his daughter.  Mr. Russell distributed the map that 
was stamped but never recorded.  Discussion about what was remembered 
from 2007 as to what the parcel looks like.  Mr. Russell said the existing drive is 
shown on the map.  The old maps were re‐stamped, signed and dated for 
recording.   Mr. Russell will get a check for $145 to the Board.   
 
Other discussion: Stratton has decided not to go with a 4‐lot sub but a 2‐lot 
instead.   



 
 
Mr. Henward asked if the CAC has a report.  Ms. Dufault asked Mr. Henward if 
he had received the road salt report and he said he had. 
 
Ms. Stevens said that a survey of farm land in the town had been asked for by 
the Planning Board and that it would help their work if they had maps of the 4 
quadrants of the town with a road map overlaid over aerial views. She asked if 
the Planning Board has a budget for this.  The estimate she got would include 
the existing countywide work to identify farmland.  It would be $500‐$800.  The 
$800 will include digitizing the CAC’s final map. To do just the maps needed to 
start this study would be $300‐$500.  Mr. Henward said that we would have 
the makings of an agricultural overlay map if this were done.  He further said 
that the Planning Board doesn’t have money per se but the town has a 
Comprehensive Plan budget.  He said he would speak to Tom Carty about 
perhaps using some of that for this purpose.  Ms. Stevens said that maybe they 
could get some of the money now and get the effort started, and then request 
the rest of the money to finish it next year.  Mr. Henward said that perhaps the 
Agricultural Committee could be restarted if they had maps like these to work 
with.  
 
Mr. Henward said that the visit to the Bluestone site is on Thursday and asked 
Ms. Stevens if she, Ruth Dufault and Guy Winig could be there.  The Bluestones 
still have the house tucked back into the corner of the clearing and we want to 
see to what extent we can limb and remove the understory of the trees to 
allow light to the house and solar panels instead of cutting more trees.  The 
meeting is at 5:45 on Thursday.  Discussion about where trees might be 
replanted in the large cleared area, per Mrs. Bluestone's offer.  Ms. Stevens 
thought that Mrs. Bluestone meant to place trees near the septic area.  
Ms. Bowen suggested it might be a good precedent to take the Bluestones up 
on their offer to replant some trees to help mitigate the large previously 
cleared area as this ridgeline area has a number of building lots where the 
developers cleared large swaths of steep slopes before the ridgeline overlay 
law went into effect preventing such clear cutting. Mr. Henward agreed.  
 
Mr. Freiman described how sensitive the Bluestones are being to the 
environment and how their home will blend in, and that we should approve it.   
Ms. Levy agreed but added that it’s best to limit as much as we can any 
additional clearing that needs to be done.  There was discussion about the 



balloon test showing that the house really can’t be seen and is pretty well 
hidden. 
  
Mr. Henward asked the CAC members if they can go as soon as possible to the 
Kimelman site to see whether they think the growth occurring there is going to 
restore the forest.  He said the Board is looking at ways to strengthen the law 
to deal with pre‐existing conditions.  We also have to protect the town from 
liability, so we want to move the Kimelman thing along. 
 
Discussion on Coon matter and possible actions on our part. 
 
Mr. Henward asked if there was any further business.  There was none and he 
asked for a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Freiman made the motion, Mr. Gardner 
seconded.  All ayes.   
 
Mr. Henward adjourned the meeting at 9:00 PM. 
 
The next scheduled PB meeting is September 12. 
 




